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PER CURI AM

We issued a certificate of appealability in response to
Charles Keith's clainms that counsel was ineffective for failing to
object to jury instructions that he all eged anended t he i ndi ct ment
as to Counts 20, 31, and 32 and Counts 5, 6, 7, 14, 15, and 24.

We are of opinion that the jury instructions regarding
Counts 20, 31, and 32 and Counts 5, 6, 7, and 14 inperm ssibly
anended t he i ndi ctment and t hat counsel was ineffective for failing
to object to the jury instructions that constructively anmended the
i ndi ct nent .

The indictnment charged Keith in Counts 20, 31, and 32
with violating 21 U. S.C. 8§ 843 by using a conmuni cation facility to
commt drug trafficking crinmes, namely distribution of drugs and
conspiracy to distribute drugs, in violation of 21 U S C 88§
841(a) (1) and 846.

However, in charging the jury, the district court stated
that in order to find Keith guilty on these counts, the jury would
have to find that Keith “used a conmmunication facility with the
intent to commt or facilitate the comm ssion of the offense of

distribution or possession with the intent to distribute a

control |l ed substance.” (enphasis added) The court added possessi on

with intent to distribute in the disjunctive as a predicate

of fense, thereby broadening the indictnent.



Possession with intent to distribute and distribution

under 21 U . S.C. § 841(a) are two separate offenses. United States

v. Randall, 171 F.3d 195, 209 (4th Cr. 1999). Thus, the district
court amended the indictment by instructing the jury on possession
wth intent to distribute when that was not charged by the grand
jury. W therefore vacate Keith' s conviction on Counts 20, 31, and
32.

Keith was indicted in Counts 5 6, 7, and 14 wth
violating 18 U.S.C. §8 1956(a)(1)(A) and 18 U.S.C. 8 2. He was al so
charged in Counts 15 and 24 wth wviolating 18 US. C. 8§
1956(a)(1)(A) and 18 U S.C. 8 2, and in addition in Counts 15 and
24 was charged with violating 18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1)(B)

Subsection (B) of 8§ 1956(a) (1) includes as an el enent of
the of fense “knowi ng that the transaction is designed in whole or
inpart . . . to conceal or disguise the nature, the |ocation, the
source, the ownership, or the control of the proceeds of specified
unl awful activity.”

Even though Keith was indicted for 18 US. C 8§
1956(a)(1)(B) only in Counts 15 and 24, the district court
instructed the jury as to Counts 5, 6, 7, 14, 15, and 24, that “the
def endant nust engage in the financial transaction with the intent
to pronote the carrying on of specific unlawful activity or to
conceal or disguise the nature, |ocation, source, ownership or

control of the proceeds.”



Therefore, the district court constructively anended t he
i ndictment on Counts 5, 6, 7, and 14 by broadening the bases for
conviction to include violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1)(B), when
the i ndictment only charged Keith in those counts with violating 18
US C 8 1956(a)(1)(A and 18 U.S.C. § 2. We therefore vacate
Keith’s conviction on Counts 5, 6, 7, and 14.

The conviction of Keith is otherw se not disturbed, but
on remand Keith may be resentenced if the district court be so
advi sed.

The governnent may reindict and retry Keith, on correct
instructions, on Counts 5, 6, 7, 14, 20, 31, and 32 should it be so

advised. See United States v. Pol ow chak, 783 F.2d 410, 417 (4th

Cir. 1986).
We dispense with oral argunent because the facts and
| egal contentions are adequately presented in the materials before

the court and argunment woul d not aid the decisional process.

VACATED I N PART
AND RENMANDED




